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Where a plaintiff landowner has filed a takings claim based on the installation of a culvert by the defendant Ogemaw
County Road Commission, the plaintiff is entitled to compensation for the culvert’s diversion of water onto his land.

“At some unidentified time, Defendant Ogemaw County Road Commission (‘Ogemaw’) installed a drain culvert under
Sage Lake Road. The culvert diverts water from Robert Reid’s land to Plaintiff’s land, which Defendants argue is the
water’s natural course but for the construction of Sage Lake Road. Nothing in the evidentiary record clearly reflects
the culvert’s purpose: where Ogemaw intended the water to go after reaching Plaintiff’s land.

“Plaintiff repeatedly blocked the culvert to prevent it from flooding his house and land. Each time, Ogemaw
unblocked and trimmed it. The culvert still floods and physically occupies Plaintiff’s land by approximately 0.33 feet,
which he contends are takings. Ogemaw, by contrast, asserts an easement for the culvert and that the flooding is
not a taking. Plaintiff pursues a federal and state takings claim, a due-process claim, and a claim for common-law
trespass.

“Among others, the questions before this Court are whether the physical occupation of a drain culvert on private
property is a taking, whether Ogemaw is immune from injunctive relief, whether road-commission employees are
immune from trespass claims, and whether the culvert’s current purpose is public or private.

“On April 15, 2021, Plaintiff brought the instant eight-count complaint in the Ogemaw County Circuit Court, alleging:
(Count I) violation of the federal Takings Clause under 42 U.S.C. §1983; (Count II) violation of the Michigan takings
clause, MICH. CONST. of 1963, art. X, §2 (2006); (Count III) violation of due process under 42 U.S.C. §1983; (Count
IV) conspiracy to interfere with civil rights under 42 U.S.C. §1983; (Count V) trespass, MICH. COMP. LAWS
§750.552; (Count VI) malicious prosecution, MICH. COMP. LAWS §600.2907; (Count VII) abuse of process, MICH.
COMP. LAWS §750.369; and (Count VIII) unlawful arrest.
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“After a series of stipulations and dismissals, only Counts I, II, III, and V remain against Defendants Ogemaw and
Reinke.

“Plaintiff will prevail as a matter of law with respect to Counts I, II, and V, and a genuine question of material fact
remains with respect to Count III.

“Defendants assert there is a prescriptive drainage easement for the culvert, thus, defeating Plaintiff’s claims.

“But that theory is not supported by the evidence.

“Even if Ogemaw had a prescriptive drainage easement, Ogemaw abandoned it.

“For these reasons, Defendants have no prescriptive easement.

“Defendants also insert Michigan’s natural-flow doctrine. … Under the natural-flow doctrine, ‘the lower and servient
estate must receive the surface waters which flow naturally from the dominant estate.’ Cranson v. Snyder, 100 N.W.
674, 676 (Mich. 1904).

“But the natural-flow doctrine does not impair Plaintiff’s case because this case involves the flow of water caused by
Sage Lake Road and a man-made culvert.

“Thus, Plaintiff is entitled to ‘compensation’ from Defendants for the culvert’s diversion of water onto his land.

“Plaintiff’s takings claims are timely because he filed them eight months before the statute of limitations even began
to run.

“For these reasons, Defendants have committed an unconstitutional taking of Plaintiff’s real property under the
Michigan Constitution. Accordingly, with respect to Count II, Defendants’ Motion for Summary judgment will be
denied, and Plaintiff’s Motion for Summary Judgment will be granted. Damages for the Michigan takings claim
remain to be determined.

“For these reasons, Defendants have committed an unconstitutional taking of Plaintiff’s real property under the
United States Constitution. Accordingly, with respect to Count I, Defendants’ Motion for Summary judgment will be
denied, and Plaintiff’s Motion for Summary Judgment will be granted. Damages remain to be determined.

“To summarize: (1) Counts I and II have been resolved in Plaintiff’s favor as a matter of law. See supra Section II.A.
(3) Count V has been resolved as a matter of law in Plaintiff’s favor. See supra Section II.C. (3) Count III has a jury-
triable question of fact as to the culvert’s private or public purpose. See supra Section II.B.”

Miner v. Ogemaw County Road Comm’n; MiLW 02-105870, 28 pages; U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of
Michigan, Northern Division; Ludington, J.

Click here to see attached PDF.

Tagged with: REAL PROPERTYREAL PROPERTY

Copyright © 2022 Michigan Lawyers Weekly,  
900 West University Drive Suite J,  
Rochester, MI 48307  
(800) 678-5297 fax: (248) 865-3117  



https://milawyersweekly.com/files/2022/09/MiED-Miner-091922.pdf
https://milawyersweekly.com/news/tag/real-property/
tel:(800) 678-5297
http://bridgetowermedia.com/

